

TOWN OF NORTH CASTLE

Local Law No. 7 of the year 2013

(Adopted August 14, 2013)

A local law to create a Master Fee Schedule for the Town of North Castle

Section 1. Create the following new Chapter 27 within the Town Code in proper numerical order:

MASTER FEE SCHEDULE

§ 27-1 Purpose. The Town of North Castle incurs significant expenses in the operation of the Planning Department, Zoning Board of Appeals, Sewer and Water Department, Town Board, the Building Department and the Police Department in administering the Town Code. There is hereby established a chapter whereby the Town Board shall have the authority to impose and collect all reasonably necessary administrative fees in connection with any application as set forth or as may hereinafter be set forth in the laws of the Town of North Castle and review of said applications, including, but not limited to, fees to be paid in connection with any application for licenses, permits, public safety and health matters, and planning, zoning, building and construction approval. These fees are necessary to carry out the Town of North Castle's regulatory measures.

§ 27-2 Master Fee Schedule. The Town Board shall establish, by resolution, a Master Fee Schedule setting forth the fees to be charged to applicants in connection with all applications made pursuant to the laws of the Town of North Castle, including, but not limited to, any application for licenses, permits, public safety and health matters, and planning, zoning, building and construction approval. The Town Board may also set forth fees in the Master Fee Schedule for reimbursement of various administrative fees, including, but not limited to, the cost of photocopies, preparation of birth and death certificates, and rental of the Town facilities. The Master Fee Schedule may be amended by resolution from time to time, as the Town Board deems necessary.

§ 27-3 Administrative fees. All administrative costs that are reasonably necessary in carrying out the objectives of the laws of the Town of North Castle shall be charged to the applicant. Administrative costs shall be set forth in the Master Fee Schedule, and shall be reflected as the actual costs of administering and reviewing such applications by the Town. For the purpose of this chapter, administrative costs shall include, but are not limited to, actual costs involved in processing applications, preparation of hearing notices, publication of hearing notices, providing notice to other governmental agencies, preparation of affidavits of posting and publication, preparation and maintenance of official records regarding the application and municipal review of the application, processing of resolutions, photocopies, preparation of birth and death certificates, rental of the Town facilities and other similarly related and necessary costs in connection with administering the laws of the Town of North Castle.

§ 27-4 Payment in advance. Unless otherwise specifically provided in this chapter, the fees required pursuant to this chapter shall be paid in advance upon submission of the application. The failure to submit the full payment required shall render the application incomplete.

Section 2. Amend Section 10-4 of the Town Code as follows:

A fee shall be charged in connection with the review of all Building and Highway Department applications described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. All fees as required by this section shall be doubled whenever the work which is subject to a fee is commenced or completed prior to the issuance of the appropriate permit.

~~The following fees shall be payable to the Town in connection with the issuance of permits, certificates and services to be provided by the Building and Highway Department:~~

~~A. Building permits:~~

	Value	Permit Fee
	\$1,000	No charge
	\$1,001 to \$15,000	\$75
	\$15,001 and up	\$11.00 per \$1,000

~~B. Plumbing permits:~~

	Type	Permit Fee
	New installation of 1 to 8 fixtures or appliances	\$60
	Each additional fixture or appliance over 8	\$7
	Installation of new house sewer from connection to public sewer or private sewer in the street or to the connection with a private septic system or other approved means of disposal to the building wall	\$25

		Sewer tie-in inspection	\$15
		Replacement of hot water heater (gas, electric or oil fired), gas stove, gas dryer, gas heating boiler, etc.	\$25
		Fire sprinkler installation or replacement, fire standpipe or combination sprinkler and a standpipe, including water service from tap with main source to building control valve station or valve location. (This test covers the initial inspection and 2 hour hydrostatic tests.)	\$120
		Fire sprinkler system within buildings (to include backflow preventor)	
		New systems and replacements, 1 to 8 fire sprinkler heads and/or fire standpipe connection	\$25
		Each additional fire sprinkler head and/or fire standpipe connection	\$2
		Lawn sprinkler systems, irrigation systems or ornamental display fountains (to include backflow preventor)	
		1 to 10 connections	\$25
		Each additional connection over 10	\$1

C. ~~Highway Department street and driveway permits and bonds:~~

	Type	Permit Fee
	Street openings (any asphalt surface)	
	Permit	\$25
	Bond	\$1,000 up to 200 square feet; over 200 square feet, the bond shall be calculated at a rate of \$5 per square foot
	Gutter, shoulder or other area within the right of way to be disturbed	\$750 up to 750 square feet; over 750 square feet the bond shall be calculated at a rate of \$1 per square foot
	Driveway construction	
	Permit	\$25
	Bond	
	New driveway	\$750
	Alteration	\$500

D. ~~Building Department services:~~

	Type	Fee
	Certificate of occupancy or certificate of compliance	
	\$0 to \$15,000	\$0
	\$15,001 and up	\$75
	Application fees	
	\$0 to \$15,000	\$20
	\$15,001 and up	\$30
	New one-family residences	\$50
	New two-family residences	\$100

		New commercial buildings	\$150
		Electrical work application permit in conjunction with New York State, Board of Fire Underwriters permit	
		Single family	\$50
		Two family	\$100
		Commercial new building	\$150
		Residential addition, renovation, pool	\$50
		Commercial addition, renovation	\$100
		Temporary certificate of occupancy	\$500
		Certified copy of certificate of occupancy	\$25
		Pre-date letter (with file research)	\$60
		Follow-up inspection after any required inspection, building or plumbing	\$100
		Demolition permit	
		\$0 to \$1,000	\$50
		\$1,001 to \$50,000	\$150
		\$50,001 and up	\$250
		Certificate of compliance for demolition permit	\$75
		Plan reproduction administration fee	\$10
		Fuel oil tank removal	
		Permit fee	\$150
		Certificate of compliance	\$75

~~E. All fees as required by this section shall be doubled whenever the work which is subject to a fee is commenced or completed prior to the issuance of the appropriate permit.~~

Section 2. Add the following new section 209-6.D(4) of the Town Code as follows:

(4) Administrative Wetland Permit Fees. A fee shall be charged in connection with the review of administrative wetland permit applications and other actions of the Town Wetlands Consultant described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

Section 2. Amend Section 45-6 of the Town Code as follows:

§ 45-6. Review of application; fee. The RPRC, in review of any application, may refer any such application reviewed by it to such engineering, planning, legal, technical, or environmental consultant(s) or professional(s) employed by the Town as the RPRC shall deem reasonably necessary for proper review of the application. ~~The application fee for such review shall be \$750, except that the RPRC may waive the review fee for minor projects such as fence, deck and minor pavement applications.~~

A fee shall be charged in connection with the review of all Residential Project Review Committee (RPRC) applications and other actions of the RPRC described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

Section 3. Amend Section 60-3.D of the Town Code as follows:

D. Fees.

~~(1) The initial alarm user permit fee shall be \$25 per calendar year or part thereof.~~

~~(2) The annual renewal fee shall be \$25.~~

~~(3) The late fee (payment after March 31 shall be \$50.~~

A fee shall be charged in connection with the review of all alarm applications and other actions of the Town described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

Section 3. Amend Section 60-4.C(1) of the Town Code as follows:

- (1) Any owner or lessee of property having an alarm device or system of devices on his or its premises and any user of services or equipment furnished by a licensee under this chapter shall pay to the Town a charge for each and every false alarm to which the Police Department or Fire Department responds in each calendar year as follows in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.
- (a) ~~For the first false alarm each year: a warning and fine schedule accompanied with written notice of violation.~~
- (b) ~~For the second false alarm each year: \$25.~~
- (c) ~~For the third false alarm each year: \$50.~~
- (d) ~~For a fourth through tenth false alarm: \$100.~~
- (e) ~~For an eleventh false alarm and each false alarm thereafter: \$200~~

Section 3. Amend Section 63-2.C of the Town Code as follows:

- C. ~~The license fee shall be paid at the rate of \$100 for each amusement device.~~

A license fee shall be charged in connection with the review of all amusement device applications and other actions of the Town described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

Section 3. Amend Section 80-6 of the Town Code as follows:

The license fee per annum for a cabaret license shall be in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~and the same is hereby fixed at the sum of one hundred dollars (\$100.),~~ provided that in the event a license is granted after the first of July of any year, the license fee shall be one-half (1/2) of the amount of the annual license fee. The Town Board shall not issue any such license until the applicant shall produce a receipt of the Town Clerk showing that the applicant has paid to the town the license fee herein provided. The term of licenses shall be for a period of one (1) year, commencing with January 1 and terminating at the end of the follow December, except that an original license shall be effective from the date the license is granted to the end of the month of December. Such license shall not be transferable and shall not authorize the person to whom it is granted to conduct a cabaret at any other location other than that specified therein.

Section 3. Amend Section 83-3.E of the Town Code as follows:

- E. Amusement rides, as a temporary facility not to exceed 10 days' duration, shall be permitted in any special event, including a charitable, religious or not-for-profit

corporation event or activity, only upon compliance with the following additional procedure:

- (1) Eight copies of a sketch showing the area to be occupied by the proposed amusement rides.
- (2) A filing fee of \$175 as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.
- (3) Not more than eight amusement rides per acre of vacant land shall be permitted.
- (4) Compliance with the applicable provisions of the Labor Law of the State of New York.
- (5) Compliance with the applicable rules and regulations of the Town of North Castle Building Department and the Code of the Town of North Castle.

Section 3. Amend the first sentence of Section 83-4 of the Town Code as follows:

Any person desiring to procure a permit as herein provided shall file with the Town Clerk, for submission to the Town Board, a written application, upon a form prescribed by the Town Board and furnished by the Town Clerk, together with an application fee in an amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule of \$100.

Section 3. Amend Section 92-5 of the Town Code as follows:

C. Fees for licensing of dogs; impoundment fee.

- (1) The fee for a spayed or neutered dog shall be as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~Schedule A attached hereto. Subsequent amendments to Schedule A may be by Town Board resolution.~~ It shall include a state assessment pursuant to § 110, Subdivision 3 of the New York State Agriculture and Markets Law and additional funds for enumeration as provided for by § 110, Subdivision 4(a), of the Agriculture and Markets Law.
- (2) The fee for an unspayed or unneutered dog shall be as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~Schedule A attached hereto. Subsequent amendments to Schedule A may be by Town Board resolution.~~ It shall include a state assessment pursuant to § 110, Subdivision 3, of the New York State Agriculture and Markets Law and additional funds for enumeration as provided for by § 110, Subdivision 4(a), of the Agriculture and Markets Law.
- (3) Enumeration fee. When the Town Board determines the need for a dog enumeration, a fee set by the Town Board by resolution shall be assessed to all dogs found unlicensed or renewed at the time enumeration is conducted.

- (4) Purebred licenses. The Town of North Castle will not be issuing purebred or kennel licenses. All dogs will be licensed individually as per the fee system stated above.
- (5) Service dogs. The Town of North Castle requires licenses for all dogs living or harbored within the Town; however, the Town fee for licensure of all types of service dogs listed in § 110, Subdivision 2, of the Agriculture and Markets Law, including, but not limited to, guide dogs, service dogs, hearing dogs, and detection dogs, is waived.
- (6) Shelters. The Town of North Castle does not allow the licensing of dogs by a shelter. The shelter must notify the adoptive owners of their responsibility to license any dog which will be living within North Castle with the North Castle Town Clerk within 30 days of adoption. The shelter shall provide the Town Clerk with a list of adoptive owners monthly.
- (7) Seniors. Dogs owned by one or more senior residents, 65 years or older, are exempted from Town licensing fees.
- (8) Impoundment fees. Impoundment fees should be as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. Schedule A. ~~Subsequent amendments to Schedule A may be by Town Board resolution.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 92-8 of the Town Code as follows:

~~§ 92-8. Penalties for offenses.~~

~~An offense against this chapter shall be deemed a violation, and a person convicted of such an offense shall be liable to a fine of \$50 for a first violation within a twelve month period; to a fine of \$100 for a second violation within a twelve month period; and to a fine of \$150 for a third or subsequent violation within a twelve month period.~~

RESERVED

Section 3. Amend Section 102-11 of the Town Code as follows:

A fee shall be charged in connection with the review of all excavation applications and other actions of the Town described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

~~The Town Clerk of the Town of North Castle shall charge and collect as a fee for the issuance of any permit hereunder the sum of \$5 per \$1,000 of the cost of such improvement or excavated area as appears from the plans submitted by the applicant, with a minimum fee of \$5 in any event, but in no case to exceed the sum of \$500.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 105-1.E of the Town Code as follows:

A fee shall be charged in connection with the review of all fill permit applications and other actions of the Town described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

~~The Building Inspector shall charge a permit fee to the landowner in the amount of \$125 plus \$3 per cubic yard of fill delivered to owner's property.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 106-4 of the Town Code as follows:

~~Each applicant shall pay a fee to the Town of North Castle set in a fee schedule determined by the Town Board as attached hereto for filming, videotaping or recording on private property per day and a fee set in a fee schedule determined by the Town Board per day for any filming, videotaping or recording on public property.~~

A fee shall be charged in connection with the review of all film permit applications and other actions of the Town described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

Section 3. Amend Section 108-4.F of the Town Code as follows:

F. The application shall be signed by the sponsor and the operator and ~~shall be accompanied by a fee of \$250.~~ a fee shall be charged in connection with the review of all film permit applications and other actions of the Town described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

Section 3. Amend Section 131-10 of the Town Code as follows:

~~The fee for the license to operate said business shall be \$500 for each calendar year or \$50 for a monthly license or any part thereof. Each location where such business is to be conducted must be separately licensed.~~

A fee shall be charged in connection with the review of all market license applications and other actions of the Town described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

Section 3. Amend Section 142-10 of the Town Code as follows:

~~A cash deposit of \$500 shall be required. The deposit shall be returned upon expiration of the license. The license fee for outdoor dining shall be \$100.~~

A deposit and fee shall be charged in connection with the review of all outdoor dining license applications and other actions of the Town described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

Section 3. Amend Section 148-6 of the Town Code as follows:

~~A. The following fees shall be paid on application to the Town Clerk:~~

~~(1) For each person, corporation or company proposing to peddle or solicit, whether on foot or from a licensed vehicle, a filing fee of \$200.~~

~~(2) For any permit issued after July 1 in any year, the fee shall be \$100.~~

A fee shall be charged in connection with the review of all peddling and soliciting license applications and other actions of the Town described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

Section 3. Amend Section 151-1 of the Town Code as follows:

No person shall conduct the business of a master or employing plumber in the Town of North Castle without first having obtained a license from the Trades Licensing Division of the Office of the Westchester County Clerk ~~in accordance with the provisions of this chapter~~; nor shall any master or employing plumber so licensed commence any new work or the repair of any old plumbing work within the Town of North Castle without first having obtained a permit to do so from the Building Inspector of the Town of North Castle.

Section 3. Amend Section 151-2 of the Town Code as follows:

RESERVED

~~A. Any person desiring to conduct the business of a master or employing plumber shall file with the Town Clerk, on a form to be provided by that office, an application to conduct such a business. At the time of filing, such applicant shall pay an examination fee of \$100 to the Town Clerk.~~

~~B. An applicant may withdraw his application at any time prior to his examination. Upon approval of the Town Board, a refund not to exceed \$50 of the application fee shall be made to such applicant.~~

~~C. Any person holding a current master plumber's license from a municipality whose standards are comparable with the standards established by this chapter shall be issued a reciprocal license without further written examination upon payment of an application fee of \$100 to the Town Clerk. No reciprocal license shall be issued on the basis of another reciprocal license. The Board of Plumbing Examiners, for purposes of applications pursuant to this section, shall make a determination and compile a list of municipalities within the County of Westchester whose licensing procedures are comparable with the~~

~~standards established by this chapter and whose licenses shall qualify for the issuance of a license under this chapter without further examination.~~

- ~~D. The Board of Plumbing Examiners may grant reciprocity on a case by case basis to licenses from outside the County of Westchester when it finds, by a majority of the Board, that the licensing standards of the municipality issuing the license are comparable with the standards established by this chapter, and that the credentials of the applicant justify granting such exception.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 151-3 of the Town Code as follows:

RESERVED

- ~~A. The Town Board shall appoint a Board of Plumbing Examiners to consist of five members. The Building Inspector, or his duly appointed representative, of the Town of North Castle shall be an ex-officio member. Two members shall be licensed master plumbers holding a current license in a town located in Westchester County and residing in the Town of North Castle. The two master plumbers appointed shall have at least five years of accredited experience as master plumbers. One member shall be a journeyman plumber residing in the Town of North Castle with at least five years accredited experience as a journeyman plumber. Such appointments shall be for a period of two years. The Chairman shall be designated by the Town Board.~~
- ~~B. Compensation for each member shall be \$15 paid to each Examining Board member, with the exception of the Building Inspector or his duly appointed representative, present to administer a test to an applicant or applicants. It shall be mandatory for a member to be present during the entire test to be eligible to receive compensation.~~
- ~~C. It shall be the function of the Board of Plumbing Examiners to determine the competency and fitness of applicants for license to engage in business as a master or employing plumber in the Town of North Castle and to inspect any new or old work in relation to plumbing systems within the town at the request of the Building Inspector.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 151-4 of the Town Code as follows:

RESERVED

- ~~A. Applicant hearings and testing.~~
- ~~(1) Hearings and testing shall be conducted at least four times during a calendar year, namely during the months of February, May, August and November. Specific dates during these months shall be up to the discretion of the Board of Examiners and at least two weeks' written notice shall be given to applicants prior to the dates arrived at. Additional hearings may be held in excess of the minimum four at the discretion of the Examining Board.~~

~~(2) — The Town Clerk upon receiving applications for plumbing licenses shall promptly forward a copy of the application to the Chairman of the Examining Board.~~

~~B. — At the hearing, the applicant shall present satisfactory evidence that he has served in any jurisdiction, a six year journeyman'ship under the supervision of a master plumber and such other evidence, as the Board may require, that he is a qualified person to carry on such business. If the applicant fails to present such evidence, his application will be denied and the full examination fee refunded.~~

~~C. — Examination.~~

~~(1) — If the applicant presents such satisfactory evidence, he shall then be required to take an examination consisting of two parts:~~

~~(a) — Part One: written exam, questions relative to plumbing mathematics, plumbing systems and code interpretation.~~

~~(b) — Part Two: schematic plumbing drawing.~~

~~(2) — Examining Board members present during the examination shall fairly monitor the examination and grade the same after completion. Those members present shall sign the names to Part One and Part Two of all exams taken under their direction and witnessing.~~

~~D. — Decision on application.~~

~~(1) — Notice of approval or rejection shall be forwarded to the applicant by the Board within five working days after such examination and hearing. Any notice hereunder shall be signed by a majority of the members of the Board of Plumbing Examiners. In the event that approval is granted, the applicant shall provide the Building Inspector with the following:~~

~~(a) — Certificate showing compliance with New York State statutory requirements for Workers' Compensation Insurance.~~

~~(b) — Certificate showing liability insurance in force, including completed operations coverage, which designates the Town of North Castle as a named insured, in the following amounts:~~

~~[1] — For liability due to damage to property, \$500,000;~~

~~[2] — For liability due to injury or death of persons, \$250,000 as to any one person and \$500,000 as to any one accident.~~

~~(c) — A surety bond in the amount of \$5,000 guaranteeing the faithful compliance by him with the provisions of the State Building Construction Code, and local laws and ordinances of the Town of North Castle~~

~~applicable to the work to be performed by him under his license, which bond shall be maintained in force during the term of the license. Said bond shall undertake to indemnify the Town of North Castle from all claims, including claims by third parties, resulting from any work performed under the terms of his license.~~

~~(2) — Upon receipt by the Building Inspector of the items specified above, he shall register the name and address of the applicant in a book to be kept for that purpose and shall issue to the applicant a numbered certificate of competency to conduct the business of plumbing, subject to obtaining the proper permits therefor as hereinafter provided.~~

~~E. — In the event that the applicant is rejected by the Board, the applicant may appeal such rejection within 60 days of the Town Board hearing. If such hearing is unsuccessful or if the applicant fails to initiate such appeal, \$25 of the examination fee shall be refunded to the applicant and the balance retained by the Town of North Castle.~~

~~F. — A grade of 65% or higher must be attained on the examination by an applicant in order to be approved for granting of a license. If an applicant fails to achieve a passing grade on the combined three part examination, he may reapply under the provisions set forth in § [151-2](#) and shall be subject to the following procedures:~~

~~(1) — Second test: six month minimum waiting period following the date of the taking of the first exam.~~

~~(2) — Third test: one year minimum waiting period following the taking of the second exam.~~

~~(3) — Subsequent tests: a minimum waiting period of at least one year.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 151-5 of the Town Code as follows:

RESERVED

~~Each license issued hereunder shall expire on the next succeeding 31st day of December and shall be renewed within 30 days preceding such expiration by application to the Town Clerk and the payment of a fee of \$25. A license which has not been renewed on or before its expiration may be renewed within one year after its expiration by application to the Town Clerk and payment of a fee of \$40, which renewal shall be retroactive to the date of such expiration. A license which has not been renewed within one year after its expiration shall not be renewed without reexamination by the Board of Plumbing Examiners, pursuant to the procedures hereinbefore set forth.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 151-6 of the Town Code as follows:

RESERVED

~~No person receiving a license hereunder shall loan, rent or permit any person to use or receive the benefit of such license, directly or indirectly, by any arrangement whatsoever, and any person so doing shall subject his license to revocation.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 151-7 of the Town Code as follows:

RESERVED

- A. ~~If, at any time after the issuance of the license, the Board of Plumbing Examiners determines that the licensee is unfit or incapable of properly conducting his trade or business, it shall so report such fact to the Town Board, which may revoke such license after a public hearing. If the license is so revoked, there shall be no reimbursement of the licensing fee.~~
- B. ~~Any person having his license so revoked shall not become eligible for relicensing for a period of one year from the date of revocation, and only then after reexamination in accordance with the provisions of this chapter.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 151-9 of the Town Code as follows:

A fee shall be charged in connection with the plumbing permit applications and other actions of the Town described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

Fees shall be as follows:

- A. ~~Installation of new house sewer from connection to public sewer or private sewer in the street or to the connection with a private septic system or other approved means of disposal to the building wall: \$10.~~
- B. ~~Sewer tie-in inspection: \$5.~~
- C. ~~Installation of fire sprinkler, fire standpipe or combination sprinkler and standpipe water service from tap with main source to building control valve station or valve location: \$50. This fee covers the initial inspection and the two-hour hydrostatic test required.~~
- D. ~~New installation of one to eight fixtures, appliances or fire standpipe connections: \$35.~~
- E. ~~Each additional fixture, appliance or fire standpipe connection over eight: \$3 each.~~

F. ~~Replacement of hot water heater (gas, electric or oil fired), gas stove, gas dryer, gas heating buffer, etc.: \$10.~~

G. ~~Sprinkler system within buildings:~~

(1) ~~New systems and replacements, one to eight sprinkler heads: \$10.~~

(2) ~~Each additional head: \$1.~~

H. ~~Lawn sprinkler systems, irrigation systems or ornamental display fountains:~~

(1) ~~One to 10 connections: \$10.~~

(2) ~~Each additional connection over 10: \$0.25 per connection.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 160-5.F of the Town Code as follows:

A deposit and fee shall be charged in connection with the review of all refuse, recyclables and trash license applications and other actions of the Town described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

F. ~~License fee. The license fees shall be as follows:~~

(1) ~~For trucks with a capacity of less than 10 yards: \$25 per year, per normal working truck.~~

(2) ~~For trucks with a capacity of 10 yards or more: \$50 per year, per normal working truck.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 164-13B.B of the Town Code as follows:

B. Before any work is commenced, the owner(s) shall apply for a connection building sewer permit for residential sewer service which will be filed by the owner or his/her agent and shall make application on a special form furnished by the Town. The permit application shall be supplemented by any plans, specifications or other information considered pertinent in the judgment of the Superintendent. ~~A permit and inspection fee of \$25 for a residential building sewer permit shall be paid to the Town at the time the application is filed.~~ A fee shall be charged in connection with the sewer service applications and other actions of the Town described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

Section 3. Amend Section 164-35 of the Town Code as follows:

~~There shall be two classes of building sewer permits; for residential and commercial service, and for service to establishments producing industrial wastes. In either case The owner or his agent shall make application on a special form furnished by the town. The permit application shall be supplemented by any plans, specifications or other information considered pertinent in the judgment of the Superintendent. A permit and inspection fee of \$25 for a residential or commercial building sewer permit and \$50 for an industrial building sewer permit shall be paid to the town at the time the application is filed, commencing one year after the opening of the treatment plant. A fee shall be charged in connection with the sewer service applications and other actions of the Town described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 164-85 of the Town Code as follows:

~~There shall be two classes of building sewer permits; for residential and commercial service, and for service to establishments producing industrial wastes. In either case, The owner or his agent shall make application on a special form furnished by the town. The permit application shall be supplemented by any plans, specifications or other information considered pertinent in the judgment of the Superintendent. A permit and inspection fee of \$25 for a residential or commercial building sewer permit and \$50 for an industrial building sewer permit shall be paid to the town at the time the application is filed, commencing one year after the opening of the treatment plant. A fee shall be charged in connection with the sewer service applications and other actions of the Town described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 173-8.D of the Town Code as follows:

- D. Fees for services. The Town of North Castle may require any person undertaking land development activities regulated by Chapter 173 of the Town Code to pay reasonable costs at prevailing rates for review of SWPPPs, inspection, or SMP maintenance performed by the Town of North Castle or performed by a third party for the Town of North Castle in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

Section 3. Amend Section 186-3 of the Town Code as follows:

Upon the order of the Town Board, the Town Clerk is hereby authorized and empowered to grant and issue the licenses referred to in the preceding section, which licenses are to continue in force until the first day of January next ensuing the granting thereof, on receipt for each license so granted in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~of the sum of \$100.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 186-4 of the Town Code as follows:

Upon the order of the Town Board, the Town Clerk is hereby authorized to issue an annual renewal of each of said licenses upon payment in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~to him of the sum of \$100 for each annual renewal thereof.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 192-5.C of the Town Code as follows:

- C. An application fee ~~of \$50~~ payment in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule, shall be submitted with the filing of the application. A separate application and fee shall be required for each lot, in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule, ~~An additional fee of \$25~~ shall be submitted at the time the applicant requests a certificate of completion in accordance with § 192-14.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-4 of the Town Code as follows:

Persons desiring the use of the district water for building construction shall make application for such service. Water for building construction will be charged for at a flat rate depending on the type and size of the building, the minimum charge for any building shall be in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~being \$50.~~ The district reserves the right to regulate the purpose for which the water may be used during construction and may, at its option, require the water to be metered and the fee for such water paid for at the rate then in force.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-5.A of the Town Code as follows:

- A. No water shall be obtained from the mains of the district for any purpose, except properly authorized construction, except through metered service. When meters are furnished for temporary or permanent service, a fee in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule, ~~of \$20~~ will be required by the Board for each meter.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-5.B of the Town Code as follows:

- B. To cover the cost of water meter replacement, the district shall require ~~make the following~~ meter charge on a quarterly basis in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule:

	<u>Size of Meter (inches)</u>	<u>Amount to be Charged (per quarter)</u>
	5/8 x 3/4	\$2.00
	1	3.50
	1 1/2	4.25
	2	5.00

Section 3. Amend Section 204-8 of the Town Code as follows:

In case of the violation of any of the rules, the Superintendent may shut off the supply upon 24 hours' notice, and water shall not be turned on again until the rules are complied with and all unpaid charges and rents are paid, together with additional charges basis in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$20~~ for turning off the water and ~~\$20~~ for turning on the water.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-10 of the Town Code as follows:

Written notice must be given by the owner to the Superintendent at 115 Business Park Drive, Armonk, New York, that the use of water is to be discontinued, and it shall be turned off at the curb when the property is temporarily vacated. The meter will be removed. A charge in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$20~~ will be made for turning off the water. The owner will be responsible for the use of water up to the time such notice is filed with the Superintendent, and a written request must be filed to have the water turned on again for which service a charge in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$20~~ will be made.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-17 of the Town Code as follows:

~~Charges for taps and connections shall be fixed by the Town Board, and charges may be changed by the Town Board without notice to meet changes in costs of labor or material. A fee shall be charged in connection with tap and connection applications and other actions of the Town described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.~~ The charge shall include furnishing, delivering and inserting the tap.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-19.B of the Town Code as follows:

Should a leak develop, it shall be repaired immediately. In the event of the failure of the owner to repair such leak, the water district may, at its option, either shut off the service at the curb box and keep it off until repairs are made or enter upon the property and make the necessary repairs, charging the cost of same to the owner in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. Whenever any service is so cut off, a charge in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$20~~ will be made for reopening the same.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-29 of the Town Code as follows:

A. The service charges are as follows:

	Diameter of Tap (inches)	Charge
	1	\$250.00
	1 1/2	\$350.00
	2	\$500.00

~~B. Any taps two inches or longer are to be made by the applicants, at no cost to the water district, and all materials used in making said tap must be approved by the Water Superintendent, under whose supervision and direction the installation will be made.~~

RESERVED

Section 3. Amend Section 204-31 of the Town Code as follows:

Meters will be furnished by and will remain the property of the water district. A fee shall be charged in connection with the water meter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

~~The following charges shall be made by the district to the consumer:~~

Meter Size (inches)	Charge
5/8 to 3/4	\$100.00
1	\$175.00
1 1/2	\$325.00
2	\$450.00

Section 3. Amend Section 204-33 of the Town Code as follows:

Should the consumer feel that the meter is not registering properly, he shall file a complaint with the Superintendent, whereupon the meter will be removed and tested by the Water Department. If it is found to register against the consumer by more than 2%, there will be no charge for removing, repairing and resetting the meter. If, however, the meter is not found to register against the consumer by more than 2%, a minimum charge in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$25~~ will be made for the test.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-35 of the Town Code as follows:

It shall be the duty of the property owner to protect the property of the district from harm. Should a meter become frozen or otherwise damaged, it shall be repaired by the water district at the expense of the owner in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~The minimum charge for such repair shall be \$25.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 204-38 of the Town Code as follows:

Meter reading transmitters placed on or within the building for the purpose of meter reading by the district will remain the property of the water district. It shall be the duty of the property owner to protect the property of the district from harm. Should a transmitter be removed, lost or otherwise damaged, it shall be replaced by the water district at the expense of the owner. The minimum charge for such repair shall be in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule \$95.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-40 of the Town Code as follows:

No seal placed by the district for the protection of any meter, valve, fitting or other water connection shall be tampered with or defaced. It shall not be broken except on written authorization from the district. Where the seal is broken, the district reserves the right to order the meter removed for test, in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~at the expense of the consumer~~ and upon a penalty of \$25.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-50 of the Town Code as follows:

The fee for connecting a sprinkler system shall be paid in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~fixed by the Town Board from time to time.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 204-60 of the Town Code as follows:

Persons desiring the use of the district water for building construction shall make application for such service. Water for building construction will be charged for at a flat rate depending on the type and size of building, the minimum charge for any building shall be paid in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~being \$50.~~ The district reserves the right to regulate the purpose for which the water may be used during construction and may, at its option, require the water to be metered and the fee for such water paid for at the rate then in force.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-61 of the Town Code as follows:

- A. No water shall be obtained from the mains of the district for any purpose, except properly authorized construction, except through a metered service. When meters are furnished for temporary service, a fee paid in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$50~~ will be required by the Board for each meter.
- B. To cover the cost of water meter replacement, the district shall require charge ~~make the following~~ meter charge on a quarterly basis in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

	<u>Size of Meter (inches)</u>	<u>Amount to be Charged (per quarter)</u>
--	--------------------------------------	--

	5/8 x 3/4	\$2.00
	1	\$3.50
	1-1/2	\$4.25
	2	\$5.00

C. This meter charge will be reflected on the quarterly water bill, March 1, June 1, September 1, and December 1, annually.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-64 of the Town Code as follows:

In case of the violation of any of the rules, the Superintendent of the district may shut off the supply upon 24 hours' notice, and water shall not be turned on again until the rules are complied with and all unpaid charges and rents are paid, together with additional charges in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$20~~ for turning off the water and ~~\$20~~ for turning on the water.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-66 of the Town Code as follows:

Written notice must be given by the owner to the Superintendent at 115 Business Park Drive, Armonk, New York, that the use of water is to be discontinued, and it shall be turned off at the curb when the property is temporarily vacated, if requested by the owner. The meter may be removed. A charge in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$20~~ will be made for turning off the water. The owner will be responsible for the use of water up to the time such notice is filed to have the water turned on again, for which service a charge in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$20~~ will shall be made.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-67 of the Town Code as follows:

All applications for tapping and making connections with the mains or water pipes of the district or any pipes privately owned or supplied by the district must be made to the district by the owner of the property or by an authorized agent. Said owner or his agent, filing a written authority from the owner, must pay in advance the charges made for tapping in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule . All applications must be accompanied by a site plan drawing showing the exact location and specifications of the proposed service line and meter. Said site plan must be approved by the Superintendent prior to the commencement of any work.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-73 of the Town Code as follows:

A fee shall be charged in connection with tap and connection applications and other actions of the Town described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~Charges for taps and connections shall be fixed by the Town Board, and charges~~

~~may be changed by the Town Board, without notice, to meet changes in costs of labor or material.~~ The charge shall include furnishing, delivering and inserting the tap.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-75 of the Town Code as follows:

No service pipe leading from the curb box to the meter shall be less than one inch in diameter or less than four feet under the ground, unless special permission is granted by the district for a shallower depth. All service pipes between the curb box and meter shall be maintained in good condition by the property owner. Should a leak develop, it shall be repaired immediately. In the event of the failure of the owner to repair such leak, the water district may, at its option, either shut off the service at the curb box and keep it off until repairs are made, or enter upon the property and make the necessary repairs, charging the cost of same to the owner. Whenever any service is so cut off, a charge in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule of \$10 ~~will~~ shall be made for reopening the same.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-85 of the Town Code as follows:

A. ~~The service charges are as follows:~~

	Diameter of Tap(inches)	Charge
	1	\$250.00
	1 1/2	\$350.00
	2	\$500.00

B. ~~Larger size taps shall be by application to the Superintendent.~~

RESERVED

Section 3. Amend Section 204-86 of the Town Code as follows:

Meters will be furnished by and will remain the property of the water district. A fee shall be charged in connection with the water meter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

~~The following charges shall be made by the district to the consumer:~~

Meter Size (inches)	Charge
5/8 to 3/4	\$100.00
1	\$175.00

1-1/2	\$325.00
2	\$450.00

Section 3. Amend Section 204-88 of the Town Code as follows:

Should the consumer feel that the meter is not registering properly, he shall file a complaint with the Superintendent, whereupon the meter will be removed and tested by the Water Department. If it is found to register against the consumer by more than 2%, there will be no charge for removing, repairing and resetting the meter. If, however, the meter is not found to register against the consumer by more than 2%, a minimum charge in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$25~~ will be made for the test.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-90 of the Town Code as follows:

It shall be the duty of the property owner to protect the property of the district from harm. Should a meter become frozen or otherwise damaged, it shall be repaired by the water district at the expense of the owner in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~The minimum charge for such repair shall be \$25.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 204-91 of the Town Code as follows:

No more than one meter will be furnished for each service. Where more than one meter to a tap is desired, the owner may obtain it by paying the charge for the use of the extra meter as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~herein~~.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-93 of the Town Code as follows:

Meter reading transmitters placed on or within the building for the purpose of meter reading by the district will remain the property of the water district. It shall be the duty of the property owner to protect the property of the district from harm. Should a transmitter be removed, lost or otherwise damaged, it shall be replaced by the water district at the expense of the owner in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~The minimum charge for such repair shall be \$95.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 204-95 of the Town Code as follows:

No seal placed by the district for the protection of any meter, valve, fitting or other water connection shall be tampered with or defaced. It shall not be broken except on written authorization from the district. Where the seal is broken, the district reserves the right to order

the meter removed for test, in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~at the expense of the consumer and upon a penalty of \$25.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 204-102 of the Town Code as follows:

The owner must keep the service pipes and fixtures in good repair, at his own risk and expense, and prevent all unnecessary waste of water, and all water consumers shall be liable for all such repairs as shall be deemed necessary to prevent water waste. Upon failure to comply with this rule, the district may repair the same and bill the owner. In the event that any such charge for work done or materials furnished shall remain unpaid for one month after the presentation of the bill, the Board may turn off the water and not turn it on again until all charges are paid, including charges in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$20~~ each for turning off and on the water.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-129 of the Town Code as follows:

Persons desiring the use of the district water for building construction shall make application for such service. Water for building construction will be charged for at a flat rate depending on the type and size of the building, the minimum charge for any building being in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~\$50~~. The district reserves the right to regulate the purpose for which the water may be used during construction and may, at its option, require the water to be metered and the fee for such water paid for at the rate then in force.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-130 of the Town Code as follows:

- A. No water shall be obtained from the mains of the district for any purpose, except properly authorized construction, except through a metered service. When meters are furnished for temporary service, a fee paid in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$50~~ will be required by the Board for each meter.
- B. To cover the cost of water meter replacement, the district shall require charge ~~make the following~~ meter charge on a quarterly basis in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

	<u>Size of Meter (inches)</u>	<u>Amount to be Charged (per quarter)</u>
	5/8 x 3/4	\$2.00
	1	\$3.50
	1 1/2	\$4.25
	2	\$5.00

- C. This meter charge will be reflected on the quarterly water bill, March 1, June 1, September 1, and December 1, annually.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-133 of the Town Code as follows:

In case of the violation of any of the rules, the Superintendent of the district may shut off the supply upon 24 hours' notice, and water shall not be turned on again until the rules are complied with and all unpaid charges and rents are paid, together with additional charges in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$20~~ for turning off the water and ~~\$20~~ for turning on the water.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-135 of the Town Code as follows:

Written notice must be given by the owner to the Superintendent at 115 Business Park Drive, Armonk, New York, that the use of water is to be discontinued, and it shall be turned off at the curb when the property is temporarily vacated, if requested by the owner. The meter may be removed. A charge in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$20~~ will be made for turning off the water. The owner will be responsible for the use of water up to the time such notice is filed to have the water turned on again, for which service a charge in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$20~~ will shall be made.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-136 of the Town Code as follows:

All applications for tapping and making connections with the mains or water pipes of the district or any pipes privately owned or supplied by the district must be made to the district by the owner of the property or by an authorized agent. Said owner or his agent, filing a written authority from the owner, must pay in advance the charges made for tapping in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule . All applications must be accompanied by a site plan drawing showing the exact location and specifications of the proposed service line and meter. Said site plan must be approved by the Superintendent prior to the commencement of any work.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-142 of the Town Code as follows:

A fee shall be charged in connection with tap and connection applications and other actions of the Town described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~Charges for taps and connections shall be fixed by the Town Board, and charges may be changed by the Town Board, without notice, to meet changes in costs of labor or material.~~ The charge shall include furnishing, delivering and inserting the tap.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-144 of the Town Code as follows:

No service pipe leading from the curb box to the meter shall be less than one inch in diameter or less than four feet under the ground, unless special permission is granted by the district for a

shallower depth. All service pipes between the curb box and meter shall be maintained in good condition by the property owner. Should a leak develop, it shall be repaired immediately. In the event of the failure of the owner to repair such leak, the water district may, at its option, either shut off the service at the curb box and keep it off until repairs are made, or enter upon the property and make the necessary repairs, charging the cost of same to the owner. Whenever any service is so cut off, a charge in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule of \$20 will shall be made for reopening the same.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-154 of the Town Code as follows:

A. ~~The service charges are as follows:~~

	Diameter of Tap(inches)	Charge
	1	\$250.00
	1 1/2	\$350.00
	2	\$500.00

B. ~~Larger size taps shall be by application to the Superintendent.~~

RESERVED

Section 3. Amend Section 204-155 of the Town Code as follows:

Meters will be furnished by and will remain the property of the water district. A fee shall be charged in connection with the water meter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

~~The following charges shall be made by the district to the consumer:~~

Meter Size (inches)	Charge
5/8 to 3/4	\$100.00
1	\$175.00
1 1/2	\$325.00
2	\$450.00

Section 3. Amend Section 204-157 of the Town Code as follows:

Should the consumer feel that the meter is not registering properly, he shall file a complaint with the Superintendent, whereupon the meter will be removed and tested by the Water Department. If it is found to register against the consumer by more than 2%, there will be no charge for removing, repairing and resetting the meter. If, however, the meter is not found to register against the consumer by more than 2%, a minimum charge in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$25~~ will be made for the test.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-159 of the Town Code as follows:

It shall be the duty of the property owner to protect the property of the district from harm. Should a meter become frozen or otherwise damaged, it shall be repaired by the water district at the expense of the owner in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~The minimum charge for such repair shall be \$10.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 204-160 of the Town Code as follows:

No more than one meter will be furnished for each service. Where more than one meter to a tap is desired, the owner may obtain it by paying the charge for the use of the extra meter as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~herein~~.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-162 of the Town Code as follows:

Meter reading transmitters placed on or within the building for the purpose of meter reading by the district will remain the property of the water district. It shall be the duty of the property owner to protect the property of the district from harm. Should a transmitter be removed, lost or otherwise damaged, it shall be replaced by the water district at the expense of the owner in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~The minimum charge for such repair shall be \$95.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 204-164 of the Town Code as follows:

No seal placed by the district for the protection of any meter, valve, fitting or other water connection shall be tampered with or defaced. It shall not be broken except on written authorization from the district. Where the seal is broken, the district reserves the right to order the meter removed for test, in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~at the expense of the consumer and upon a penalty of \$25.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 204-171 of the Town Code as follows:

The owner must keep the service pipes and fixtures in good repair, at his own risk and expense, and prevent all unnecessary waste of water, and all water consumers shall be liable for all such repairs as shall be deemed necessary to prevent water waste. Upon failure to comply with this rule, the district may repair the same and bill the owner. In the event that any such charge for

work done or materials furnished shall remain unpaid for one month after the presentation of the bill, the Board may turn off the water and not turn it on again until all charges are paid, including charges in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$20~~ each for turning off and on the water.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-185 of the Town Code as follows:

Persons desiring the use of the district water for building construction shall make application for such service. Water for building construction will be charged for at a flat rate depending on the type and size of building, the minimum charge for any building shall be in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~being \$50~~. The district reserves the right to regulate the purpose for which the water may be used during construction and may at its option require the water to be metered and the fee for such water paid for at the rate then in force.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-186 of the Town Code as follows:

- A. No water shall be obtained from the mains of the district for any purpose, except properly authorized construction, except through a metered service. When meters are furnished for temporary service, a fee paid in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$50~~ will be required by the Board for each meter.
- B. To cover the cost of water meter replacement, the district shall require charge ~~a make the following~~ meter charge on a quarterly basis in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

	<u>Size of Meter (inches)</u>	<u>Amount to be Charged (per quarter)</u>
	5/8 x 3/4	\$2.00
	1	\$3.50
	1 1/2	\$4.25
	2	\$5.00

- C. This meter charge will be reflected on the quarterly water bill, March 1, June 1, September 1, and December 1, annually.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-189 of the Town Code as follows:

In case of the violation of any of the rules, the Superintendent of the district may shut off the supply upon 24 hours' notice, and water shall not be turned on again until the rules are complied with and all unpaid charges and rents are paid, together with additional charges in such amount

as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$20~~ for turning off the water and \$20 for turning on the water.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-191 of the Town Code as follows:

Written notice must be given by the owner to the Superintendent at 115 Business Park Drive, Armonk, New York, that the use of water is to be discontinued, and it shall be turned off at the curb when the property is temporarily vacated, if requested by the owner. The meter may be removed. A charge in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$20~~ will be made for turning off the water. The owner will be responsible for the use of water up to the time such notice is filed to have the water turned on again, for which service a charge in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$20~~ will shall be made.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-192 of the Town Code as follows:

All applications for tapping and making connections with the mains or water pipes of the district or any pipes privately owned or supplied by the district must be made to the district by the owner of the property or by an authorized agent. Said owner or his agent, filing a written authority from the owner, must pay in advance the charges made for tapping in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule . All applications must be accompanied by a site plan drawing showing the exact location and specifications of the proposed service line and meter. Said site plan must be approved by the Superintendent prior to the commencement of any work.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-198 of the Town Code as follows:

A fee shall be charged in connection with tap and connection applications and other actions of the Town described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~Charges for taps and connections shall be fixed by the Town Board, and charges may be changed by the Town Board, without notice, to meet changes in costs of labor or material.~~ The charge shall include furnishing, delivering and inserting the tap.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-200 of the Town Code as follows:

No service pipe leading from the curb box to the meter shall be less than one inch in diameter or less than four feet under the ground, unless special permission is granted by the district for a shallower depth. All service pipes between the curb box and meter shall be maintained in good condition by the property owner. Should a leak develop, it shall be repaired immediately. In the event of the failure of the owner to repair such leak, the water district may, at its option, either shut off the service at the curb box and keep it off until repairs are made, or enter upon the property and make the necessary repairs, charging the cost of same to the owner. Whenever any service is so cut off, a charge in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$15~~ will shall be made for reopening the same.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-210 of the Town Code as follows:

A. ~~The service charges are as follows:~~

	Diameter of Tap(inches)	Charge
	1	\$250.00
	1 1/2	\$350.00
	2	\$500.00

B. ~~Larger size taps shall be by application to the Superintendent.~~

RESERVED

Section 3. Amend Section 204-211 of the Town Code as follows:

Meters will be furnished by and will remain the property of the water district. A fee shall be charged in connection with the water meter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

~~The following charges shall be made by the district to the consumer:~~

Meter Size (inches)	Charge
5/8 to 3/4	\$100.00
1	\$175.00
1 1/2	\$325.00
2	\$450.00

Section 3. Amend Section 204-213 of the Town Code as follows:

Should the consumer feel that the meter is not registering properly, he shall file a complaint with the Superintendent, whereupon the meter will be removed and tested by the Water Department. If it is found to register against the consumer by more than 2%, there will be no charge for removing, repairing and resetting the meter. If, however, the meter is not found to register against the consumer by more than 2%, a minimum charge in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$25~~ will be made for the test.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-215 of the Town Code as follows:

It shall be the duty of the property owner to protect the property of the district from harm. Should a meter become frozen or otherwise damaged, it shall be repaired by the water district at the expense of the owner in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~The minimum charge for such repair shall be \$25.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 204-216 of the Town Code as follows:

No more than one meter will be furnished for each service. Where more than one meter to a tap is desired, the owner may obtain it by paying the charge for the use of the extra meter as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~herein~~.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-218 of the Town Code as follows:

Meter reading transmitters placed on or within the building for the purpose of meter reading by the district will remain the property of the water district. It shall be the duty of the property owner to protect the property of the district from harm. Should a transmitter be removed, lost or otherwise damaged, it shall be replaced by the water district at the expense of the owner in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~The minimum charge for such repair shall be \$95.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 204-220 of the Town Code as follows:

No seal placed by the district for the protection of any meter, valve, fitting or other water connection shall be tampered with or defaced. It shall not be broken except on written authorization from the district. Where the seal is broken, the district reserves the right to order the meter removed for test, in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~at the expense of the consumer and upon a penalty of \$25.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 204-227 of the Town Code as follows:

The owner must keep the service pipes and fixtures in good repair, at his own risk and expense, and prevent all unnecessary waste of water, and all water consumers shall be liable for all such repairs as shall be deemed necessary to prevent water waste. Upon failure to comply with this rule, the district may repair the same and bill the owner. In the event that any such charge for work done or materials furnished shall remain unpaid for one month after the presentation of the bill, the Board may turn off the water and not turn it on again until all charges are paid, including charges in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$15~~ each for turning off and on the water.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-242 of the Town Code as follows:

Persons desiring the use of the district water for building construction shall make application for such service. Water for building construction will be charged for at a flat rate depending on the type and size of building, the minimum charge for any building shall be in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~being \$50~~. The district reserves the right to regulate the purpose

for which the water may be used during construction and may at its option require the water to be metered and the fee for such water paid for at the rate then in force.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-243 of the Town Code as follows:

- A. No water shall be obtained from the mains of the district for any purpose, except properly authorized construction, except through a metered service. When meters are furnished for temporary service, a fee paid in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$50~~ will be required by the Board for each meter.
- B. To cover the cost of water meter replacement, the district shall require ~~charge~~ a ~~make the following~~ meter charge on a quarterly basis in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

	Size of Meter (inches)	Amount to be Charged (per quarter)
	5/8 x 3/4	\$2.00
	1	\$3.50
	1 1/2	\$4.25
	2	\$5.00

- C. This meter charge will be reflected on the quarterly water bill, March 1, June 1, September 1, and December 1, annually.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-246 of the Town Code as follows:

In case of the violation of any of the rules, the Superintendent of the district may shut off the supply upon 24 hours' notice, and water shall not be turned on again until the rules are complied with and all unpaid charges and rents are paid, together with additional charges in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$20~~ for turning off the water and ~~\$20~~ for turning on the water.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-248 of the Town Code as follows:

Written notice must be given by the owner to the Superintendent at 115 Business Park Drive, Armonk, New York, that the use of water is to be discontinued, and it shall be turned off at the curb when the property is temporarily vacated, if requested by the owner. The meter may be removed. A charge in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$20~~ will be made for turning off the water. The owner will be responsible for the use of water up to the time such notice is filed to have the water turned on again, for which service a charge in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$20~~ will ~~shall~~ be made.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-249 of the Town Code as follows:

All applications for tapping and making connections with the mains or water pipes of the district or any pipes privately owned or supplied by the district must be made to the district by the owner of the property or by an authorized agent. Said owner or his agent, filing a written authority from the owner, must pay in advance the charges made for tapping in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule . All applications must be accompanied by a site plan drawing showing the exact location and specifications of the proposed service line and meter. Said site plan must be approved by the Superintendent prior to the commencement of any work.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-255 of the Town Code as follows:

A fee shall be charged in connection with tap and connection applications and other actions of the Town described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~Charges for taps and connections shall be fixed by the Town Board, and charges may be changed by the Town Board, without notice, to meet changes in costs of labor or material.~~ The charge shall include furnishing, delivering and inserting the tap.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-257 of the Town Code as follows:

No service pipe leading from the curb box to the meter shall be less than one inch in diameter or less than four feet under the ground, unless special permission is granted by the district for a shallower depth. All service pipes between the curb box and meter shall be maintained in good condition by the property owner. Should a leak develop, it shall be repaired immediately. In the event of the failure of the owner to repair such leak, the water district may, at its option, either shut off the service at the curb box and keep it off until repairs are made, or enter upon the property and make the necessary repairs, charging the cost of same to the owner. Whenever any service is so cut off, a charge in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$15 will~~ shall be made for reopening the same.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-267 of the Town Code as follows:

A. ~~The service charges are as follows:~~

	Diameter of Tap(inches)	Charge
	1	\$250.00
	1 1/2	\$350.00
	2	\$500.00

B. ~~Larger size taps shall be by application to the Superintendent.~~

RESERVED

Section 3. Amend Section 204-268 of the Town Code as follows:

Meters will be furnished by and will remain the property of the water district. A fee shall be charged in connection with the water meter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

~~The following charges shall be made by the district to the consumer:~~

Meter Size (inches)	Charge
5/8 to 3/4	\$100.00
1	\$175.00
1 1/2	\$325.00
2	\$450.00

Section 3. Amend Section 204-270 of the Town Code as follows:

Should the consumer feel that the meter is not registering properly, he shall file a complaint with the Superintendent, whereupon the meter will be removed and tested by the Water Department. If it is found to register against the consumer by more than 2%, there will be no charge for removing, repairing and resetting the meter. If, however, the meter is not found to register against the consumer by more than 2%, a minimum charge in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$25~~ will be made for the test.

Section 3. Amend Section 204-272 of the Town Code as follows:

It shall be the duty of the property owner to protect the property of the district from harm. Should a meter become frozen or otherwise damaged, it shall be repaired by the water district at the expense of the owner in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~The minimum charge for such repair shall be \$25.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 204-273 of the Town Code as follows:

No more than one meter will be furnished for each service. Where more than one meter to a tap is desired, the owner may obtain it by paying the charge for the use of the extra meter as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~herein.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 204-275 of the Town Code as follows:

Meter reading transmitters placed on or within the building for the purpose of meter reading by the district will remain the property of the water district. It shall be the duty of the property owner to protect the property of the district from harm. Should a transmitter be removed, lost or otherwise damaged, it shall be replaced by the water district at the expense of the owner in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~The minimum charge for such repair shall be \$95.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 204-277 of the Town Code as follows:

No seal placed by the district for the protection of any meter, valve, fitting or other water connection shall be tampered with or defaced. It shall not be broken except on written authorization from the district. Where the seal is broken, the district reserves the right to order the meter removed for test, in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~at the expense of the consumer and upon a penalty of \$25.~~

Section 3. Amend Section 204-284 of the Town Code as follows:

The owner must keep the service pipes and fixtures in good repair, at his own risk and expense, and prevent all unnecessary waste of water, and all water consumers shall be liable for all such repairs as shall be deemed necessary to prevent water waste. Upon failure to comply with this rule, the district may repair the same and bill the owner. In the event that any such charge for work done or materials furnished shall remain unpaid for one month after the presentation of the bill, the Board may turn off the water and not turn it on again until all charges are paid, including charges in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$15~~ each for turning off and on the water.

Section 3. Amend Section 209-6.D(1) of the Town Code as follows:

- (1) An application fee in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$50~~ shall be paid by the applicant.

Section 3. Amend Section 213-15.D(1) of the Town Code as follows:

- (1) Permit fee. Every applicant for a permit, before being granted such permit, shall pay to the Building Inspector a fee in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~the amount of \$5 plus \$0.50 for each square foot, or fraction thereof, in excess of 10 square feet of sign area.~~ No temporary sign permit fee shall be required of any nonprofit organization.

Section 3. Amend Section 213-62.B of the Town Code as follows:

- B. Before any permit shall be issued, written application therefor shall be made in duplicate on official Town forms. All applications shall be accompanied by a fee, in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~accordance with the fee schedule set by the Town Board~~, and two copies of a layout or plot plan drawn to scale, showing the actual shape

and dimensions of the lot to be built upon, the exact size and location on the lot of all buildings proposed to be built on the lot, and of any existing buildings or structures that shall remain, the existing and intended use of each building or part of the building, the estimated cost, the official base flood elevation data provided by the Federal Insurance Administration or, in the event such data is not yet available, any base flood elevation data which is approved by the Town Engineer and is available from federal, state, county or Town agencies, or other sources, and such other information with regard to the lot and neighboring lots that may be necessary to determine and provide for the enforcement of this chapter. Except for a permit exclusively for a sign, a plot plan shall also show all public service lines, septic tanks and other sanitary facilities, the number of families that the building is designed to accommodate, the nature of the improvement and the intended use or purpose to be made of the improvement and premises. One copy of such plan, properly endorsed, shall be returned to the owner, either in person or by mail, when such plans shall have been approved by the Building Inspector. In riverine situations, the Building Inspector shall notify adjacent communities and the State Coordinating Office prior to any alteration or relocation of a watercourse, and submit copies of such notifications to the Federal Insurance Administration.

Section 3. Amend Section 213-67.A of the Town Code as follows:

- A. A fee shall be charged in connection with the review of any zoning application or petition requesting any amendment, supplement, change, modification or repeal of the zoning regulations or district boundaries; any special permit; and any site plan application described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

~~For the purpose of defraying administrative costs involved in the review of applications and appeals and the legal notices required by law, the following actions shall be accompanied by a fee, in the amount prescribed and payable to the Town of North Castle:~~

- ~~(1) — Each application or petition requesting any amendment, supplement, change, modification or repeal of the zoning regulations or district boundaries, submitted in accordance with Article XII of this chapter: \$200.~~
- ~~(2) — Each application for a special permit, in accordance with §§ 213-26 through 213-32 of this chapter: \$200, plus \$5 for each required off-street parking space. Where an expansion is proposed for an existing building, the fee required would be \$200, plus \$5 for each new required parking space.~~
- ~~(3) — Each application for site plan approval in accordance with §§ 213-34 through 213-41 of this chapter:~~
 - ~~(a) — For new buildings: \$200, plus \$10 for each required off-street parking space.~~

- (b) ~~For existing buildings: \$200, plus \$10 for each new required parking space.~~
- (c) ~~For multifamily dwellings in multifamily residence districts: \$100 for each proposed dwelling unit.~~
- (4) ~~Each appeal or application taken to the Board of Appeals, in accordance with §§ 213-65 and 213-66 of this chapter: \$250.~~

Section 3. Amend Section A216-13.F of the Town Code as follows:

- F. The applicant(s) has paid a fee in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~as required in Appendix B of these regulations.~~

Section 3. Amend Section A216-15.A(1)(h) of the Town Code as follows:

- (h) Be accompanied by the payment of an application fee in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~as required in Appendix B~~

Section 3. Amend Section A216-15.A(1)(h) of the Town Code as follows:

- (11) Be accompanied by a fee in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~as required by § A216-34 of these regulations.~~

Section 3. Amend Section A216-18.C of the Town Code as follows:

- C. Inspection fee. To offset the costs incurred by the Town in conducting inspections, all applicants for approval of subdivisions involving the construction of streets and/or other improvements shall be required to submit an inspection fee, in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. ~~as required in § A216-36.~~

Section 3. Amend Section A216-34 A & B of the Town Code as follows:

- A. Discussion fees. Where, prior to submission of a sketch or preliminary subdivision plat, an applicant or an applicant's representative wishes to discuss a subdivision proposal with the Planning Board, a discussion fee in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$200~~ shall be submitted for each such informal appearance before the Board.

- B. Subdivision application.

A fee shall be charged in connection with the review of all subdivision applications, including sketch plat, preliminary subdivision and final subdivision applications described in or contemplated by this chapter in such amounts as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule.

~~Where an application for subdivision approval is submitted, the application shall be accompanied by fees as follows:~~

~~(1) Sketch plat: \$50 per lot.~~

~~(2) Preliminary subdivision plat: \$300 for the first lot and \$200 for each additional lot.~~

~~(3) Final subdivision plat: \$250 for the first lot and \$100 for each additional lot.~~

Section 3. Amend Section A216-35.A & B of the Town Code as follows:

- A. Where the Planning Board finds that, with respect to a subdivision, a reservation of land would be inappropriate, the Planning Board shall require the applicant to deposit with the Town Board a parks reservation fee in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$10,000 per for each~~ new building lot. These moneys shall be placed in a special fund to be used for the purchase and development of sites for parks and recreational areas in the Town.
- B. In all cases where a middle-income unit is developed and where the Planning Board finds that, with respect to a subdivision, a reservation of land would be inappropriate, the Planning Board shall require the applicant to deposit with the Town Board a parks reservation fee in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule of \$10,000 per for each new building lot. These moneys shall be placed in a special fund to be used for the purchase and development of sites for parks and recreational areas in the Town.

~~the recreation fee shall be \$1,000 per new building lot.~~

Section 3. Amend Section A216-36 of the Town Code as follows:

To offset the costs incurred by the Town in conducting inspections, all applicants for approval of subdivisions involving the construction of streets and/or other improvements shall be required to submit an inspection fee, payable to the Town of North Castle, in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~equal in the amount of 5% of the total costs for the improvements. As determined by the Town Board, additional inspection fees shall be paid by the owner of the project where delays in completing the work extend the construction period beyond one year and result in the cost of inspection services exceeding the original fee amount.~~

Section 3. Amend Section A216-37 of the Town Code as follows:

Where a subdivision requires for its preliminary and final approval other permits and approvals of the Town, applicants should be apprised of other fees required by the Town to offset the costs of permit review and issuance.

- A. Town environmental quality review fee.

- (1) ~~RESERVED~~ Accompanying an environmental clearance form: ~~\$25.~~
 - (2) Accompanying an environmental assessment form: In such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule \$100.
 - (3) ~~Accompanying any environmental impact statement for residential projects, 2% of the total project cost, which shall include the cost of the land plus the cost of all required site improvements, not including the cost of buildings and structures, minus \$50.~~
 - (4) ~~Accompanying any environmental impact statement for nonresidential projects, 1/2 of 1% of the total project cost. The total project cost shall be the cost of supplying utility service to the project, the cost of site preparation and the cost of labor and material, as determined with reference to a current cost data publication in common usage, such as Building Construction Cost Data by Means.~~
- B. Town Wetlands and Watercourse Protection Law fee. A permit fee in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$50~~ shall be paid to the Town as a condition precedent to the issuance of a permit for an approved application.
- C. Town Flood Damage Prevention Law fee. A permit fee in such amount as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule ~~of \$50~~ shall be paid to the Town as a condition precedent to the issuance of a permit for an approved application.

Section 4. Conflicting Standards.

Where the requirements of this Local Law impose a different restriction or requirement than imposed by other sections of the Code of the Town of North Castle, the Town Law of the State of New York or other applicable rules or regulations, the requirements of this Local Law shall prevail.

Section 5. Severability.

The invalidity of any word, section, clause, paragraph, sentence, part or provision of this local law shall not affect the validity of any other part of this local law that can be given effect without such invalid part or parts.

Section 6. Effective Date.

This Local Law shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and filing with the Secretary of State.

Dated: August 14, 2013